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Strategic Report

The Directors prasent their Strategic Report for the year ending on 31 March 2022.
Business Review

BigHant is a customer-centric globat software business with a prumary focus on the legal marckat with an expanding
range of irnovative soiutions specificaliy designed to create value and tangibie return on invesiment., With our
focused solutions, we are empowering the business of law

BigHand’s Mission: To help law firms around the globe optimise their business by increasing orofessional productivity
and enhancing profitasility.

We do this through offering four categeries of groductivity tools: 1) People Productivity (workflow management and
resource management), 2) Financial Productivity {business inteiligence and pricing & profitability), 3) Document
Productivity {document creation and metadata management) and 4} Business Productivity {pitching & proposals). Our
deep domain knowledge across all our salutions means we act as trusted advisors to our customers. This ensures high
levels of customer satisfaction, a market l2ading net promoter score and, accordingly, high levels of retention and

renewal.

BigHand’s Vision: To be regardeq as tne first choice globally for each key solution we offer, whiist being the maost
respected software partner to faw firms globally.

Staff
A critical contributor to the success of BigHand is the enthusiasm, commitment, and talent of our staff.

The Group makes considerable effarts around staff engagement. including regular communrications, events, awards for
staff achievements, external staff events, innovation competitions, and making time avatiiable for the davelopmentteam

10 innovate.

In the technology sector, talent s at a premium and the Group continues (o improve 1ts reward, recognition, and talent
management inftiatives for staff. We have done extensive work around cur Employee Vaiue Propesition, ensuring we
leverage its strengths apd identify anhancements, to support 1n the attraction and retention of talent.

The Group runs a confidential staff survey each year, as well as pulse surveys throughout the year, to gather feedback
on key topics, and the results show very positive feedback. This positive staff sentiment was re-affirmed publicly, as
BigHand nas been named as the 25" UK's Best Workplace™, by Great Places to Work?, in the Medium categery
(orgamsatiors witn 50-499 empiovees), for a sixth year running.

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group has cortinued to develop and implement our Environmentai Social and Governance strategy, with progress
formally reported to the Board on a quarteriy basis.

These initiatives include robust governance measures to ensure our staff act in an ethical marner in all their deafings
with external parties, contmued focus on ensuring our high data security standards are maintained, charitable activities,
and environmental inniatives to heip establish strong environmental performance standards.

The Group has ar Information Security Committee which meets regularty to assess risks and threats, and impiement
appropnate actions.

BigHand
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Strategic Report (continued)

Finangial Qverview

The resuits for the year are set out in the Consoligated income Statement. The Group [oss after tax was £23,945,000,
A number of subsidiaries are exempt from the requirement of an audit of their individual accounts in compliance with
s479A-C of the Companies Act 2006, Parental Guarantee has been given by Bighand UK Topro uimited to sacn of the

subsidiares histed in note 21,

Key Performance indicators

Proforma results of the BigHand Group

The nelow table shows the full vear results of BigHand Group for the year ending 317 March 2021 and 31" March 2022
had the income statement been prepared on a consistent basis as BH Group Tonco Limited in the year ended 317 March
2021 and excluding any accounting adjustments made under IFRS 3. By iaw the financial statements have been prepared
for the period since incorporation on the 24" August 2020 and include trading from the 137 Gctober 2020 which is due
ro the change 'n ownership. However, unaudited full year results have been included as they provide a mare informative
view to the reader of the undertying cusiness performance year on year.

Proforma Proforma

2022 2021

£'000 £000

Support revenue 24,697 23,541
Subscription revenue 5,039 3,279
Total recurring revenue 29,736 26,820
Licence revenue 3,996 3,716
Services revenue 3,700 3,123
IT hardware revenue 326 583
Other 279 244
Total revenue 38,037 34,486
Cost of sales {3,522) {3,479)
Gross profit 34,515 31,007
Administrative expenses (18,835) (16,946)

Adjusted EBITDA: earnings before non-
recurring, acguisition, depreciation, 15,680 14,061
amortisation, finance and tax costs

BigHand




DocuSign Envelope 1D 85908124-806C-4013-92FC-55B7DAD43F56
BigHand UK Topeo Limited

B ] I I AN D 2AGITS A0 LONZONUERT DT IO sLaTemen iy
Ig a n d i Maron 2020

Strategic Report (continued)

Proforma results of the BigHand Group {continued}

»  Revenues grew o £38m (2021 £34 5m} in the pericd to 31 March 2022,
The Group’s recurring revenues, made up of annual maintenance suppert and SaaS revenues, increased to
£29 7 (2021: £26.8m) an increase of 11%. Recurring revenues in the year represented 78% of total revenues
{2021 78%), providing strong forward revenue wisibility. The Group mamntained s strang track record of low
customer attrition,

e Grossprofitof £34.5m (2021 £31m) increased by £3.5m.

e EBITDA of £15.7m {2021: £14.1m) increased by £1.6m.

Principal Risks & Uncertainties

Financial Risks and Going Concern

The directers, in their consideration of wheather the Business 15 a going concern, have reviewed the Group's future cash
forecasts and revenue arojecnons, which have been prepared on the hasis of market knowledge, past experience and
current trading conditions. and believe, based on those forecasts and projections and the Group’s current committed
debt position and projected strong cash generation from trading, that it is appropnate to prepare the finanoal
statements of the Companry and Group on a going concern basis. The directors have assessed the going concern geriod
up to 31st March 2024

Management s currently of the opimon that the Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of potential changes
in trading perfarmance, show that the Group will be able to operate within its current facilities and comply with its bank
covenants In arriving at their conclusion that the Group has adeguate resources, the directors were mindful that the
Group Ras a strong focus on liguidity and cash flow maragement and that it s currently financed through faciiities
committed to 2028,

During the year, tne Group made a lass of £23.9m and as at the balance sheet date the Group had net fiabilities of
£44.5m. The directors report that they have re-assessed the orincipal risks, reviewed current performance and
forecasts, combined with 2xpenditure commitments, including capital expenditure, ard bor-owing facilities. The Group
and company have finanang arrangements comarising loars and otner furding which are subject to periodic review
ard are subject to certain covenants. The diractors are of the opinion that the necessary finance and other facilities will
continue to oe made available and rhe Group and company wili have the funding necessary w continue to trade, The
Group complied with the requirements of the loan coverants durnng the period and the directors believe this will
cortinue in the foreseeanle future.

The Group's activities axpase it to a number of financiai risks, including cash flow risk, credit nsk and liquidity risk. The
Group does not use dervative financial iInstruments for speculative purpeses.

Cash Flow Risk

Tne Groun's cash flow risk 's :ts axposure to vanavility in cash flows asscciated with a recogmsed asset or :dability, such
as future interest payments on 2 gept, the Group manages ts nisk, oy monitoring casn flow projections on a r2gular

Dasis to ensure Hhat aoproprata faciiities are availabie to he drawn upon, 3s necassary.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Principal Risks & Uncertainties (continued)

Credit Risk

The Group's eredit risk is primarify attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts oresented in the batance sheet
are net of a provision for doubtful receivables. A loss allowance is required to be made and measured at the 12-month
expected credit tosses that result from the svent of a reduction in the recoverability of the balance due.

Very few customers receive greater than 30 days credst terms and this minimises the risk of any non-payment. We
ciosely monitor the payment history of all customers and communicate with a customer very early if payment is not
raceived on the due date.

Liguidity Nisk and fnteresl Risk

The cash generated by operations is monitored closety and all funds are heid in readily accessible bank accounts with 3

group netting faciity in place. The Group's cash flow forecasts are updated regularly to ensure that sufficient funds are
availabie to meet all financial commitments.

Fareign Currency Risk
Sales outside of the UK are typically made in the local currency relevant to the market. The Group is ther=fore exposed
to movements 0 the international currency markets agamst Sterling,

These foraign exchange transactions are hedged through a combination of expenditure aiso being incurred in tne locai
currency and appropriate financial currency contracts.

Commercial Risk

digHand seeks to mitigate commercial and operational risks through ensuring operational polices are followed,
ensuring strong cradit cortrol procedures are in place and by an ongoing review of changes in the industry. All new
customer contracts are subject to internal iegal, commercial, operationai and finance sigr off at different levels
dependeant on product, complexity, and scale.

Business Interruption Risk

The Group has a framework of operational procedures and ousiness continuity plans that are regularly reviewed,
updated and tested. Back-up faciities and contingency olans are in prace and are reviewed and tested reguiarly to
ensure that business interruptions are minimised. The Groun's iT mvasts in s infrastructure to ensure that they are
able to respend tc the needs of the business. Back-up facibties and contingency pians are in place and are reviewed ana
rested regularly to ensure that data 1s protected from corruption or unautherised use.

Technology / Cyber Risk

The Group’s information Secunity Committee meets guarterly To assess risks and threats and implement approprate
actions. An Annual Management Review is also neld betweaen the information Securty Committee and Senior
Management to provide assurance to the Board that significant technaiogy risks ro the business are being identified
and appropriate mitigations have beer implemented, and that the Group’s Information Security Management System

remains effective.

3uilding or Bighand’s currant 15027001 and Cyber Fssantials Prus certifications, in February 2022 the group undertook
ar SO27001 zap analysis with tne Intantion to bring Iridium into BigHard's Information Security Management System
A -padmap has peen draftad with the aim of aligning 'ridium by the end of 2022, This work will ensure that the entire
husiness remains compliant with our information security standards.

BigHand
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Strategic Report (continued)

Principal Risks & Uncertainties (continued)

Technology / Cyber Risk {continued)

BigHand has continued carrying out Phishing testing and anpropriate training to reduce the risk of the business being
caught out by a phishing attack or data breach. The business regularly meets 1ts target of 3% or less of staff failing a
phishing attack test, and 95% of ail BigHand staff completed their Securtty Awareness traiming by end-March 2022

BigHand recognises that Cyber risk is a threat and mitigates this through mvestment in security technolegies, and a fuil
ard comprebensive backup strategy that if required can e used to restore all business-critical services. To compliment
the technoiogies in nlace the Group alse holds a continuous education program for staff awareness, regular penetration
and application testing, business continuity plans and disaster recovery plans that cover all pusiness areas, and the
scenaric-based tasting of incident management plans.

Suppliers, Systems and Infrastructure Risks

There are a number of key suppliers whose services are importact to BigHand. These suppilers are reviewed ard risk
assessed at least annually to ensure that where possible we are not reliant on a singie provider, iNcreasing business
resilience. BigHand has appropriate ‘ncident escalation and disaster recavery contingency plans 1n piace, with cyber
forensic experts on retantion should they hea required.

The Legal and Compliance team carried out a full review of key suppiiers in 2021/22. Suppliers are reguired to meet
formal mimmum requirements befare being approved by the tegat and Compliance team, reducing risk of data breach
throughout the supplier cham.

Climate Risk

BigHand strives to continuously improve its performance :r the emaronmental arena. This s fundamentally
importance to us, we believe that a safe and sustainable environment s essential to continued business sustamability
and profitability. BigHand believes there are significant opportunities to maove towards 4 zero-impact business and
have establisheq a set of overarching policies to promote zero-impact operaticns.

internal Controls

The Board approves the budget for the foillowing year and reviews the monthly maragement accounts and key
performance 'ndicators 3gainst the budget and obtains explanations for variances. The Roard approves all large-scale
rapital expenditure. There s a delegation of authority matrix which governs alf purchase approvals, bank payments and
pricing models.

On behaif of the Board

DocuSigned by:

Sames Dais

AQO53SBS00EDAF4
Jamas Davis

CFQ

August 10, 2022
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Director’s Report

The directors present their annual report and the financial statements of the Group for the year
ending 31 March 2022.

The principai activity of BigHand UK Topco Limited 1s as a hoiding company The principal actoaty of the BigHand Group
ts the provision of software and services relatad to improving professional productivity {workffow management and
document creation} and enhanced srofitability {financial business :ntalligence and matter pricing & tracking)

Dividends
No dividends were oroposed or paid during the year. The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Going Concern

We have assessed the group’s and the parert company’s ability and conclude the going concern basis is appropriats.
Please see Note 1 and page 6 of the fnancial statements of the principal nisks and uncertainties sect:on for further
derail.

Employee Involvement

A great deal of effort 1s devoted to providing clear and consistent communication of the Compary strategy and plans to
enable employees to deliver the strategy. Twice morthly meetings are held between management and emoioyees
chrough which we seek ta keeo alt emgloyees informed and involved in the progress of 3igHard.

Directors

The directors who served the company throughout the year and thereafter were as follows:
J Dawvis
] Kaufman
S Toulson

| ' Neitl

Disclosure of information to Auditors

The directors who were members of the Board at the ime of aporoving the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report are
listad above. Having made enquiries of fellow directors and of the Company’s auditors, each of these directors confirm
that to the nest of each directors’ knowledge and belief, tnera s no informanion relevant to the preparation of therr
report of which the Company's auditars are unaware: and each director has taken 3/l steps a director might reasonably
he expected to have taken to be aware of relevant audit information and o establish that the Company’s auditars are
aware of that information.

This corfirmation 1s given and should oe nteroretad ir accordance with The pravisiors of s423 of the Companes Act
2006.

BigHand
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Director’s Report {continued)

Reappointment of Auditors

A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP 3s auditors will be putto the members at the Annual General Meeting.

On pebaif of the Board

DecuSigned by:
James Daneis
AQ0S358500ED4F4

iames Davis

CFO
August 10, 2022
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Strategic
report, Directors’ report and the financial statements

The diractors ara responsiie for oreparing the Annual Report, and the Group and parent company financial statements
in accordance with applicable law ard regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financia statements for 2ach financial year.
Under that law the directors have elected 1o prepare the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance
with International Accounting Standards in conformity with the Companies Act 2006 and the parent company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law), inciuding financial Reparting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework [“FRS 1017}

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period.

in preparing the Group finanuat statements, 'nternational Accounting Standard L requires that directors

»  Select suitable accounting poiicies «n accordance with JAS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimareas
and Errors, and then appiy tnhem corsistently;

+ Present fairly the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Group;

»  Presentinformation, including accounting poiicies, i a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable, and
understandabie information:

Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+  Provide additioral disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs s insufficiant to enable
users to anderstand the impact of particilar transactions, other events and conditions orn the group’s financa!
position and financral performance:

+inrespect of the graup financial statements, state whether International Accounting Standards in conformity with
the Companies Act 2006 have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements: and

= Prepare the financial statrements or the going concarn basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the Group
and the parenrt comnany will continue In business.

In praparing the parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:
~ Select aporopnate accounting policies and appiv them consistently.
+  Make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent; and

s State whether they have followed the applicable UK accounting standaras, sutyect to any material departures
disclosed or explained in the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explair the parent
company’s transactiors and disclose with ~easonable accuracy st any time the financial sosition of the parent company
and enakble them to ensurs that ts financal statements compiy with the Comparies Act 2006. “hey have gereral
resporsibiity for taking such steps as are reasorably oper o them to safeguard the assets of the Graup and to orevent
and detect fraud and other ‘rreguianues.

BigHand
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Indepeﬁdent auditor’s report to the members of BigHand UK Topco
Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BigHand UK Topco Limited {‘the parent company’) and its subsidiaries {the
‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2022 which comprisa the Group Income Statement, the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheet, the Group Statement of Cash Flows, and the
Group and Parent Statement of Changes in Eguity and the relatad notes 1 te 29, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framewaork that has been appiied 1n the pregaration of the group financiai
statements s applicabie law and UK adopted international accounting standards. The financial reporting framework
that has beer applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and United
Kingdem Accourting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclasure Framework” {United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practicel.

In our opmnion

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March
2022 and of the group’s ioss for the year then ended:

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accourting standards,

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared i accordance in with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards” and appiicable law Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s respornsibiities for the audit of the firancial
statements sectior of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requiremerts that
are relevant to our audit of the financiai statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethicai Standard, and we have fulfiiled
our other ethical respansibilities 1n accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to orovide a basis for aur opinton,

Conclusians relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparatior of the financial statements is approorate.

Based on the workwe have gerformed, we have not dentified any matenai uncertainties refating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectivery, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a
going concern up to 31 March 2024,

Our respensibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not ali future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement s not a
guarantee as 1o the group's ability 1o continue as a going concern.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of BigHand UK Topco
Limited {continued)

Other information

the other informar.on comprises the information included In the anrual repart, other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report.

Cur gpinior on the Fnancial statements does not cover the other infarmation and, except tc the extent otherwise
axplicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusior thereon.

Our responsibibity is to read the other information and, in deing so, consider wnetber the other information is materiatly
inconsistent with the financial statemerts. or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent matenai misstatemeants, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the atner information, we are
required ta repors that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinian, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial vear for which the financia
statements are prepared s cansistent with the financial statements; and
. the strategic raport and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicabie legai requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exceptiaon

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parert company ard its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified materal misstatements in the strategic 7eport or directors’ report.

We have nothing to repart in respect of the following matters (n refator to which the Companies Act 2006 reguiras us

to report ta yvou if, in our apinion

* adeguate accounting recards have not beer keot by the parent company, or returns adegquate for our audit have
not geen raceived fram branches not visited by us; or

s« the parent company finanoal statements are notin agreement with the accounting records and returns, ar

e certamn disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not receivad 3l the ‘nformartion and expianations we require “or our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explaired more futly in the directors' responsikilities statement set out on page 11, the directors are rasponsible for
the preparaton of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give o true and fair view, and for such
interna! control as the directors determine is necessary to erable the preparation of financial statemaeants that are free
from maternial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the finrancial statemenrts, the directors are responsible for assessing the groun’s and the parent company’s
ahiity to cartinue as a going concern, cisclosing, as apolicabie, matters relates fo going concerr and using the going
concer= gasis af accounung uniess the directors eitner intend to liguicdate the group or the parent Zompany or to coase
operations, of have ng realistic aiternative put to do so.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of BigHand UK Topco
Limited {continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are Lu ubtain reasonable assurance about whether the finrancial statements as a whole are free fram
materiar misstatement, whether due to fraud or arror, and to issue an auditar's report that includes our apinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurarce, but is not 3 guarantze that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (W) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considerad material f, individually or i the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mnfluence the aconomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanetion as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting «rreguiarities. including fraud

irreguiarities, inciuding fraud, are instances of non-compitance with laws and regulatiens. We design procedures i iine
with cur responsibifities, oullined ahove, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatemert due to fraud s higher thar the risk of not detecting ane resutting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentionai misrepresentations, or through coitusion. The axtent to
which our procedures are capabie of detecting rregularties, including frauc is detailed below. However, the primary
responsibility for the arevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity
and management.

Our approach was as foilows:

*  We obtained an understanding of the legai and regulatory frameworks that are appiicabie to the company and
determined that the most significart are those that relate to the reporting framework | UK adopted international
accounting standards for the group, FRS 101 for the parent and the Companies Act 2006} and the relevant tax
compliance “eguiattons in the Jnited Kingdom.

= We upderstood mow BigHand UK Topco Limited is complying with those framewaorks by making inguiries with
management. We corroborated our inguiries through review of board minutes and papers provided to those
charged with goverrance, as weil as corsideration of the results oF our audit procedures over the company’s
financiat stataments,

+»  We assassed the susceptibility of the Company and Group’s financial statements to matenai misstatement,
including how fraud might occur by meeting with management to understand where it considered there was
susceptibility to fraud. We considered the programmes and controls that the company has established to addrass
risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud; and how sentor managemenrt monitors those
orogrammes and controls. Where the risk was considered to be migher, we parformed audit orocedures to address
cach dentified fraud risk.

= Based an this understanding we designed our audit procedures to 1dentity norcompliance with such laws ard
regulations. Cur procedures invoived journal entry testing, with a focus or manrual non-standard journals and
;ournals indicating rarge or unusaal transactions based on our understandirg of the business; inguires of those
rasponsible for legal and compliarce of the company and management; and focdsea testing. In addition, we
compieted procedures to conclude on the compliance of the disclosures in the annual report and accounts with all
applicabie reguirements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the qudit of the financial statements is 'ocated on the
Financiai Reporting Courcil’s website at https//www.fre.org.uk/suditorsresponsibidities. This descripion forms part of
Jur auditor’s repart,
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of BigHand UK Topco
Limited {continued)

Use of our report

This report is made soclely to the company's members, as a body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compares Act 2006. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are reguired to state to them in an auditor’'s report and for no other purpose. Tothe fullest axtent permitied
by law, we do not accept or assumae rasponsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body. for aur audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:
fnt & b[ow Ly
33F11C5B8633443 .

Jonathan Gill (Senior Statutory Auditor)

forand on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

Dated: August 10, 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31st March 2022
Note

2022 247" Alg
2020 ta
31 Mar
2021
£'000 £'060
Support revenue 22,605 5417
Subscription revenue 5,039 1,663
Total recurring revenue 27,644 7,080
Licence revenue 3,996 1,523
Services revenue 3,700 1,641
iT hardware revenue 326 282
Cther 27% 134
Total revenue 35,945 10,660
Cost of sales {3,856} {1,738}
Gross profit 32,089 2,922
Administrative expenses 2 (18,793} {8,061,

Adjusted EBITDA: earnings hefore non-recurring,
acquisition, depreciation, amortisation, finance, 13,296 861

and tax costs

Non-recurring costs 2 (5,339) {10,796
Depreciation 6&7 {922) (414}
Amortisation 8 (8,429) (2,893
Total costs {33,483) (22,164}
Operating loss 2 {1,394) (13,242;
Fareign exchange losses {713) {313)
Finance charges {20,110} {9,256)
Amortisation of debt financing costs (1,125) (295
Net finance expense 4 {21,948) [9.864;
Loss for the year/period before taxation (23,342} (23,106}
Tax on loss for the year/period 5 {603) 425
Loss for the year/period (23,945) {22,681]

BigHand
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l BigHand |

Consolidated Statement of other Comprehensive Income

for year ended 31 March 2022

24 Aug
2020 to
31" Mar
2022 2021
£000 £000
Loss for the year/period {23,245) (22,681}
Other comprehensive income
tems that may subsequently be reclassified to the profit and
Hal 3N
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations 325 389
Total comprehensive loss for the year/period (23,620} [22,292)

BigHand
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
at 31 March 2021

Note 2022 2021
£'000 £000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equinment o 665 512
Right-of-use Assets 7 1,114 1,547
intangibie assets s 297,429 179,008
Deferred tax asset 10 6,261 2,325
Total non-current assets 305,469 183,492
Current assets
Inventories 11 59 i34
Trade and other receivabies 17 13,336 9,668
Cash and cash eguivalents 13 13,346 172,727
Corporation tax recetvable 244 449
Total current assets 26,985 27,978
Total assets 332,454 211,470
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 (33,734} {28,523]
interest-bearing loans and borrowings 15 {431) (39}
Lease llabilities 7 (487) (478}
Corporation tax payabie -
Total current liabilities (34,652} (29,090)
Non-current liabilities
Interest-hearing loans and borrowirgs 15 {311,230) {185,577}
Lease liabilities 7 {795) (1,220)
Deferred tax liapility 10 {30,242) {16,925)
Total non-current liabilities {342,267) {203,716
Total liabilities {376,919} {232,806)
Net liahilities {44,465) (21,336)
Equity
Share capital 16 13 1G
Share premium 1,462 951
Raserves {45,940} (22,297}
Total equity (44,465) 121,336;

Thesa financial statements were approved by the Board of directors and sigred on thew behaif by:

DocuSigned by:

James Dawis
AUOS3ISBEOCEDAFY .
lames Savis

Cro

10th August 2022
Company registered numper 12832924
Authorised for issue by "he Board of directors on (0th August 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for year ended 31st March 2022

Skare Foraign Employee

Share Aremium Exchange Retaineg Benefit
Camral Account Raserve Earnings Trust Total Equity
£'000 £'000 £'G0O0 £'900 £'000 £'000

At incorporation {24 Aug 2020} - - . - - -
Loss for the period - - - 122,681 - {22,681)
Exchange differences on transtation of

faragn operations : - 389 - - 389
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - 325 (23,945) - {23,620}
Issue of new shares 10 951 - - - 961
Erployee Benefit Trust - . - - i5) {5}
31 March 2021 10 951 389 (22,681) {5} {21,336}
Loss for the year 2022 - - : [23.945) - (23.345;
Exchange differerces on transiation of

foreigr operations - - 325 - - 325
Total comprehensive ioss for the year - - 325 {23,945) - {23,620}
Issue of new shares 3 511 - 514
Frrployee Benefit Trust - - 123) {23

31 March 2022 13 1,462 714 {46,626} (28} {44,465}
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2022 247 Aug
2020 to
317 Mar
2021
£'000 £000
Operating loss {1,354} (13,242
Adjustments to recencile:
Depreciation 922 414
Amortsation 8,429 2,893
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade and other receivabies {2,330) {1,076}
Increase in inventories 75 (8}
Increase in trade and other payahles {1,424} 15,994
Net cash generated from ogperations 4,278 4,975
interest paid {5,667} (3,473}
Corporation tax (130) {305)
Net cash generated from operating activities {1,519} 1,197
Cash flows from investing activities:
Paymants of deferred consideration {1,500}
Payments for oraperty, plant and equigment {420) (123)
Payments to acquire ather intangible assets {5,611} (2,470)
Ds Acquisitions (net of cash acquired) {104,357} (161,227}
Net cash used in investing activities {111,888) (163,820)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of lease liabilities (514) 277}
Proceeds from issue of shares 514 961
{Payments) / Proceeds from EBT (23) {3)
Proceeds from issue of prefarence shares 71,823 101,887
{Payments)/Proceeds from issue of subordirated ioan notes (7} 20,000
Proceeds fromissue af bridge loar rotes - 650,000
Repayment of bridge foan notes - {60,000}
Repayment of debt {2,500) 60,000
Proceeds from incremental bank financing 42,016
Fees associated with incremental pank financing {900} {2,304;
Net cash from financing activities 110,409 180,262
Net increase in cash and cash equivaients {2,998} 17,633
Movement attnibuted to currency and other agjustments {1,383) 88
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 2021 / 24 Aug 2G20 17,727
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 13,346 17.727

BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

{forming part of the financial statements)

1. Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

BigHand UK Topco Limited {the “"Company”) s a private company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in the
UK.

The Group financial statements consolidate these of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”}. The parent company financial statements present information about the Company as a separate entity.

The Group financial statements kave been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Tre Company has elected to
prepare its parent company financai statements In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclusure Framework {-H5 101); these are presented on pages 48 ¢ 55.

The financial statements are prapared on the historical cost basis except derivative financial instruments, which are
stated at their fair value.

Parental Guarantee has been given by BigHana UK Topco Limited to the subsidianes of the group as listed in Note 21
exempting the subsidiarias from the requirement of an audit of thew individuat accounts :n compliance with 3479A-C of
the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling and all vaiues are rounded to the nearest thousand pounc
{(FO00) except when otherwrse indicated.

The comparative periad presentad in the financiai statements is 3 shorter period, less than 12 maonths, from
incorporation 24 Aug 2020 to 31 Marck 2021,

Going concern
The directors, in their consideration of whether the Business 15 a going concern, have reviewed the Group’s future cash

forecasts and revenue orojections. which have been greparad on the basis of market knowledge, past experience and
current trading conditions, and beheve, pased an thase forecasts and projections and the Group’s currant committed
debt positior and orojected strong cash generation from trading, that it is appropriate to prepara the financial
statements of the Company and Group on a going concern basis. The directors have assessed the going concern period
up to 31 March 2024,

Management is currently of the opimion that the Group's forocasts and grojections, taking account of potertial changes
in trading performance, show that the Group will be able to operate within its current facilities and comply with its bank
covenants. In arriving at their corclusion that the Group has adeguate resources, the directors were mindful that the
Group has a strong focus or figuidity and cash flow management and that it is currently financed through faciities
committed to 2028,

During the year, the Group made a 'oss of £23 9m and as at the balance sheet date the Group bad net liapilities of
£44 5m. The diractors <enort that they have re-assessed the principal risks, reviewed current performance and
forecasts, combined At expenditure commitments, nciuding capital expenditure, and bor-owing facilites. The Group
and company have firarcing arrangements comprsing icans and other funding which are subject to periodic raview
and are subject to certaim covenants. The directors are of the arimon that the necessary finance and other facilities will
continue ¢ be made avallagle and the Group and company will have the funding necessary to continue to trade. The
Group comphed witt the requiremeants of the oan covenarts during "he period and the directors pateve ths will

continue i the foreseeable futura.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued;)
The Group's activities expose 1t 1o @ number of finanaial risks, intluding ¢ash flow risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Basis of consolidation

On the 13" October 2020 Levine Leichtman Capital Partners acquired BH Group Topco Limited {the Bighand Group}
from Bridgepoirt Advisers |l Limited. BigHand UK Topece Limited was incorporated in England on the 24" August 2020
and is now the new garent company of the BigHand Group and so requiring preparatior of these consoiidated financial
statements.

Subsidianes are all entittes controlled by the Group, The Group controts an entity when it 1s exposed to. or has rights 1o,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability ta affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Cantrol comprises the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the investee so as to cbtam
benefit from its activities and 's obtained through direct or indirect ownership of voting nghts, currently exercisable or
potentially corvartible voting rights or by contractual agreement. The acquisition date is the date on which control 1s
transferred to the acquirer. Assets, fiabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acguired or disposed of during the
pericd are included in the consohdated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the
Group reases 0 control the subsidiary.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are aiiminated on consolidation.

Estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements 'n accordance with .nternational accourting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Compamnes Act 2006 requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amaounts of assets ard liabilities at the date of the financial statements and rhe repncrted amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Althcugh these estimates are based on managament’s best knowledge of the
amount, events or actions, actual resuits ultimately may differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underiying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and varnious other factors that are beiteved 10 be reasonablte under the
circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that peried, or in the pertod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both currant
and future periods. The directors consider the failowing to be critical sstimares and judgements applicacie to the
financial statements:

e Recoverabifity of goodwil and impairment cafculations
Management perform annual impairment reviews using forecasted futurz cash flows for 2ach cash generating unit, the
key assumptions included within the forecasts are in note 8.
Management also perform a sensitivity analysis over these key assumptions to ensure they are reasonasie and n fine
with historical experience and applicable circurnstances,

s Fgirvalues
Managemaent consigar tre far values of the .dentifiabie assets and liakilities for 2ach new pusiness combination. The
fair values of any intangible assets recogrised are considered individually. The method of vaiumg 'ntangible assets
depends upon the class of asset to be recognised. Managemert have gsed a discountad cash flow aralysis to determine
the fair vaiue of mtangible assets recogrused as sart of the business combination,

BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued}

Fareign currency transiation

The Group consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling, which is alsc the parent company functional
currency For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items inciuded in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions -n foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and lizbilities denominatad 1n foreign currencies at
the balance sneet date are retransiated to the functional currency at the foreigr exchange rate ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange differances arising on translation are recognised in the income statement,

Non-monetary assets and liabilitics that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transachan. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominatad in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are retransiated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the
datas the fair value was determined.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, :ncluding goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consehdatian,
are translated to the Group’s presentational currency, Sterling, 3t foreign exchange rates culing at the baiance sheet
date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are transiated at an average rate Tor the year where this rate
approximates to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

£xchange differences arising from this translation of foreign operations are reported as an item of other comprehansive
income and accumulated in the foreign exchange reserve. On disoosai of a foregn operation, the component of other
comprohensive income relating 1o that particuiar foreign operatior s recogrised in the grofit or loss.

Any goodwill anising or the acquisition of a foreign operation and any farr value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising an tne acquisition are traated as assets and labilities of the foreign operation and transiated
at the foreign exchange rate ruiing at the reporting date.

Cerivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value The gain or toss o measurement to fair value is recognised
immediately ir the income statement.

Non-derivative financial instruments
Naon-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivabies, cash and cash eguivatents, toans and

borrowings, and trade and other payables.

Trade and ather recewvables
Trade and cther receivables are recogrised nitiaily at transaction price. Subseguent to imitial recogmtion they are
measurad at amartised cost using the effective interest meathed, less any impairment losses.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payabies are recognised initially at fair vatue. Subseguent 7o initia recognition they are measured at

amartised Cost using the sffective snterest method

BigHand
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Notes to the consalidated financial statements (continued)

1. Accounting policies {continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on nand and short-term deposits with a maturity of 3 months or
less which are subject to an insignificant risk in changes in value.

Interest-bearing loans and barrowings

Interest-beanng locans and barrowings are recognised irttially at far value less attrbutabie transactior costs.
Subseguent toinital recognition, interest-nearing ioans and borrowings ars stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Property, plant and equipment
Property. plant and eguipmenrt are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment fosses.

Depreciation is chargad to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated usaful lives of each part of
an item of property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful iives are as foilows:

»  _pasehoid improvements over 5 years
s Fixtures and fittings over 4 years
*  Egquipment over 2 years

Depraciation metheas, useful fives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Business combinations

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting for the acqguisition of a subsidiary. The cost of the acguisition is
meastrad by the fair value of consideratior transferred. Costs directly attributable to the acguisitior are expersad in
the perod ir which they are incurred. Consideration that s contingent op cartain targets being met s anaiysed by
managemert and recorded either as a contingent liaility measurea at fair value or as deferred remuneration ftor

services depending on the nature of the agreement,

ldentifiable assets acquired and liztalities 1n a business combination are measured initrally at theyr fair values at the
acauis:tion date, The excess of +he cost of acquisition over the fair vaiue of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired 1s
recorded as goodwill. Following the initial recogrition on the fair values determined in business combination, there
should be no sigrificantimpact on the asset values ir the subsequent years.

intangible ossets
Goocdwill
The Group measures goodwill at the acguisition date as
«  the fair salue of the consideration transferred; plus

the net recogrised amount {generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

1. Accounting policies {continued)

intangible assets (continued)
Internally generated intangibles
An internally generated intangible asset arising from the developmenrt of saftware is recognised only if alf of the
foliowing conditions are met:
s Itis probabie that the asset will create future aconomic benefits;
*  The development costs can he measured reliabiy;
¢+ The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset can be demonstrated,
*  Thereis the intention to complete the asset and use or sell it;
*  Thereis the ability to use or seil the asset; and
»  Adequate technical financiai, and other resources to comoiete the deveiopment and to use or sell the asset
are avallable.

Whera no intangsble asset can be recognised, deveiopment expenditura is charged to the income statement in the
period 10 which itis incurred,

Subseguentto imbal recognition, intangible assets are reported at cost iess accumulated amaortisation and accumuiated
impairment losses. Amartisation of an internatly generated intangible asset begins when development is complete, and
the asset is available for use and amortisation is provided to write off the cost of each intangible asset aver its useful
economic tife of 3 years,

Research expenditure is recognised 3s an expense in the gericd in which it s incurred.

intangibies acquirad as part of o business combination

In accordance with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combirations’. an intangible asset acquirad in a business combination s deemed to
nave a cost to the Group of its fair value at the acquisition date. The fair vaiue of the intangible asset reflects market
expectations about the probability that the future economic benefits ambodied in the asset will flow to the Group.
Subseguent to initial recogrition, wntangibles assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumudated impairment losses. intangibie assets are amortised over geriods of 3 years for software, between 3 and 5
years for inteilectual aroperty, between 10 and 20 years for customer relationshios and between 10 and 20 years for
3rand.

Inventories

Inventonies are stated at the iower of cost and net realisabie value, after making due allowance for ohsolete and slow -
maoving 1tems. Net realisable value is the astimated selling orice ir the ordinary course of business, iess estimated costs
of compietion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair value of frnancial assets ard financial ahilities recoraged in the statement of financial position cannot be
gerved from active markets, their fair value s determined using vaiuation technigues ncluding the discounted cash
flow model. The inputs o these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible
a degree of judgemenr s ~equireg in estabiishing fair values. Estimation uncertamties anse from assumprions on
Trguiaity risk, Sredit risk and volfatility. Charges in assumptions about these factors coutd affect tne fair value of financial

instruments.

BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Accounting policies {continued)

Impairment of financial instruments
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss needs o account for expected losses oninitial recognition,
and be remeasured 3t each reporting date.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost s caleulated 3s the next 12-month
expected credit losses. Cradit iosses are the difference between the PV of all contractual cashflows and the PV of
expected future cash flows, discounted 3t the asset's original effective interest rate. Subsequently, .f the credit risk of
the financial instrument increases significantly, the full tifetime of expected losses would be used. When a subsequent
avent causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease 10 impdirment toss s revarsed through income
statement.

Impairment of non-finanicial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reparting date to determine whether thare ‘s any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
tne asset’s recaoverabie amount s estimated.

The goodwill acquirad in a busiress combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, 1s allocated to cash-generating
units, or “CGY". For the purposes of goodwiil impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are
aggregated so that the ievel at which impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal reparting purposes. Goodwiil acquired in a busiress combination 1s allocated to groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating umit s the greater of its value 1n use and its fair value less costs
to sell I assessing vaiue 1in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a post-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of marey and the risks specific to the asset.
For the purpose of iImpairment testing, assets that cannot be tested ndividually are grouped tagether inta the smaliest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are jargely independent of the cash inflows of
othker assets or groups of assets {the “cash-generating unit”).

An imparmeant toss 15 recognised If the carryirg amount of 30 asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverabpie
amount. imparment losses are recognised o arofit or loss, Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of ary goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the unit [group of urits) an a gro rata basis.

Ar impairment loss in respect of gooawill 15 not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in
prior periods are assessed at edch reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss 15 reversed if there nas been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment Joss is reversed oniy to the axtent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount

shat would have been determired. net of depreciation or amortisation, if noimpairment loss bad been recogrised.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefit trust (‘EBT')

The Company operates an EBT gver whnich it has de facto control of the shares heid by the trust and bears the benefits
and risk, It therefore records the assets and liabilities and the resuits and cash flow of the trust as its own. Consideration
paid by the trust to acquire the shares in the Company 15 deducted in arriving at shareholders’ funds.

Non-recurring costs

The Group presents nan-recuriing costs on the face of the income statement, these are material items of income and
expense, which because of the nature and expected infrequency of the events giving rise to them, merit separate
presentation to allow shareholders to understang better the elements of financiai performance for the year, so as to
facilitate comparison with prior periods and to assess better trends n financial performance.

Preference shares
Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable or a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on
these prafarence shares are taken to the income statement as finance expense.

Revenue
Revenue represents the fair vaiue of the consigeration received or receivable from tne saies of software and related
support ang maintenance, |7 equipment and professionat services, net of discounts and saies taxes.

Revende is recognised when the Grouw has fuifilted its performance abligations under the reievant customer contract,
The Group sells a number of products which typically consists of ail, or some, of the following typas of revenue —licenced
aroducts, support and maintenance, subscriptions, (T nardware sales, and professional services. Where the contract
includes multiple elements, the fair value of those elements is based on the relative stand alone selling prices.

To the extent thatinvoices are raised to 3 differant pattern than the revenue recognition descrined below, approoriate
adjustments are made through deferred and accrued income o account for revenue when the performanrce obligations

have been met.

The Group has arrangements with some of its clients whereby it neeas to determine if it acts as a principal or an agent
as mare than ane party is mmvolved 10 providing the goods and services ro the customer The Group acts as a prircipal if
it controls a promised good or service before rransferring thar good or service to the customer. The Group is 3r agent
if its rale is to arrange tor another antity ta orovide the goods or services. Factors considered 'in making this assessment
are most notably the discretion the Group has in estabiishing the price for the specified good or service, whether the
Group has inventory risk and whether the Groun is primarily responsibie for fulfilling the promise to deliver the service
or good, Where the Group 15 acting as a principai, revenue 15 racorded on a gross basis. Where the Group is acting as an

agent, revenue is recorded at a net amount reflecting the margin 2arned.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Accounting policies {continued)
Rewvenue fcontinued)

{i} Licencing Models
Revenue s recognised either when the gerformance obligation in the cantract has been performad (so ‘pointin time’
recognition; or ‘over time’ as control of the performance aoligation s transfarred to the customer.

{a} Licenced Products
The majcrity of products are ticenced and either installed on the customer’s own equipment or hosted by Bighand or a
third party, in addition to a licence fee, the Group charges annual support and maintenance fees. The fee charged
deperds on the level of support sorvice contracted.
The elements for a software order typicafly include iicenced products, IT hardware, professional services for
impiemantation and support and maintenance. The individual 2lements whilst part of an overail order are charged for
and recognised separately. Revenue s recogrised as described below.

{b) Saas
Saas procucts are only hostad by BigHand and the customer is provided access ta the software over the internet. These
products are defivered to the customer as a service over time and no support and maintenance is charged as the single
subscription fee covers this. Revenue is recogrused as described oelow.

{ii} Revenue Recognition by Revenue Type

(a} Licence revenue - the Group licences software under non-cancetlable licence agreements on g perpetuat 2asis.
Performance obligations are considered to be met, and reverue s recognised, when a nen-cancelfable icence
agreement has been signed and the software has been made availabie to the customer, except for where there are
uncartainties surrounding proguct acceptance or there are significant vendor obligatrons When this arises revenue
recogmition is deferred until ali material ohiigations are satisfied. For the majority of contracts, this rasuits i licence
revenues heing recognised in full at the start of the contract.

For Business inteilligence solutions — custamers are not able to use the software until the data warehouse is built, which
requires implementation time to bespoke and install, Revenue s recognised wher conwrol s transforred to the
customer, or completion of instaitation when the customer has the use and berefit or the product.

{b) Support Revenue - revenue from cortracts for software mairtenance and support is recognised an 3 pro rata basis
over the contract period, reflecting the Group's obligation to support the retevant software products and update their
content over the contract perod.

(c} Supscriptions revenue  customers tynically enter into contracts on an annual basis, Revenue 15 recognised evenly
over the perod of the contract. Subscription fees inciude the hosting of the software and support and maintenance.
‘) 1T rardware revenue - revenue from the sale of T eguipment s racognised when the control of the asset ~as

transferred to the buyer, which is the date the sguipment ‘s delivered and accepted by the customer.

. BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue {continued)

fe} Services revenue - revenue from professional services {which includes software implementation, training and
consultancy services) s recognised n the accounting pered in which the services are delivered. For fixed-price
contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actuai service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion
of the total services to be provided {percentage of completion method) Percentage completion is estimated based on
the totai number of hours performed on the project comparad to the total number of hours expected to compiete the

project. Estimates of completion are revised if circumstances change.

Leases

As g fessee

The Group leases various offices and some eguipment. At the inception of a contract, the Group assess whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease A contract is, or containg, a iease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a periog of time 1n exchange for consideration.

The Group recognises a nght-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
rignt-of-use asset s initialiy measurad at cost, which comprises the imtial amount of the tease fapility olus any initial

direct costs incurred less any iease incentives received.

The ~ight of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-iine method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the nght-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The astimated usefui lives of
right-of-use assets are determined on the same hasis as those of property and eguipment.

The lecase liability is initially measured at the opresent value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencemeant date, discounted using the intersst rate ‘mplicit ir the (ease or f that rate cannot be -eadily
detormined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses s incremental porrowing rate as the

discount rate.

For leases acguired through business acquisition, the lease liability is measured as if ' were a new lease {reassessing its
term, lease payments) and the right of use asset is measurad ar the market rate at the point of acquisitior.

The fease liapdity s measurad at amortised cost using trre effective interest method, 1t 's remeasured when thereis a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there is 2 change 10 the Group’s estimate
of the ameunt expected to be payavle under a residual value guarantee, or If the Group changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

The Group oresents the right-of -use assets that are .nvestment property in ‘property, niant and equipment’ and lease
tiahilities in loanrs and borrowings’ in the statemenrt of financial position.

Snort term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group has 2lected not to recogrise rignt of use assets and ‘ease liatlinies for short-term ieases of machinery that

have z 'ease term of 12 months or ‘ess and 'eases of 'ow-value assets The Group recogrises the lease payments
assoc.ared with these leases as an experse on a straight-line basis over the {ease term.

BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Accounting policies {continued)
Taxation
Tax on the profit or toss for the year comprises current and deferrad tax and 1s recogrised in the income statement.

Current tax assets aod liadilities are measured at the expected amount to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authortias based on tax rates and laws that are eracted or substantively enacted by the baance sheet date.

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences hetween the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financiai
reporting purgoses and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following tempaorary differences are not provided
For: the initral recegnition of goodwill; the 'nitial recognition of assets or habilities that affect neither accountng nor taxable
profit other than in 2 business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that can
be controlled and that they will grobably not reverse in the foreseeable future, The amount of deferred tax provided is
based un the expecled mannear of raalisation or settlement ot the carrying amount of assets and liahilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset s recogmisad anly to the extent that 1t is probable that future taxadie profits will be available against
which the tempaorary difference can pe utilised.

2. Operating Loss

Operating loss has veen arrived at after charging / fcrediting).

247" Aug 2020

o 31 Mar

2022 2021

£'000 £000

Research and development expensed as incurred 2,434 1,665
Depreciation on aroperty, plant and eguipment (note 8} 425 17s
Depreciation on right-of-use assets {note 7) 497 235
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 8) 8,429 2,893
Employee costs fnote 3) 14,840 6,000
Non-recurring costs 5,338 10,796

FY22: Non-recurring costs comprise fees associated with the acquisition and inregration of Irdium {£3 9m}, charges
relating to deferred remuneration and contngent consideration of previcusly acguired subsidiares (EQ.em),
restructuring costs {£0.3m) and other strategic initiatives (£0.5mj.

FYZ2L: Naon-recurring costs comprise fees associared with the change in ownership from Bridgepoint to LLCP (£8.6m), the
charge for lpnekion Lid {3 company previousty acquired by BigHand Ltd] and Masonr & Cook contingent considerations
{£1m), refinanoing costs (£6.7m), Mason & Cook acquisition costs {£0.2my, professional feesrelating to a group structure
simpification propect (£0.1m} and other strategic inmatives 1£0 2m),
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2. Operating Loss {continued}

Auditor’s remuneration:

it Alaren 2027
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2477 Aug 2620

1o 31 Mar

2022 2021
£000 £7000

Amounts receivable by the Company’s auditor and its associates in respect of:

Audit of these financial statements 136 181
Total audit services 186 181
Acquisition due diligenceas - 468
Tax compliance services 46 37
Patent tax work - 3
Corporate finance services - 22
Covenant compliance reperting 11 11
Other - 15
Total non-audit services 57 557

EBITDA and adfusted EBITDA;

EBITRA s not 3 financial measure defined by iFRS as a measurement of financial performance. The Group s management
believe that EBITDA {Sarnings before :nterest, Tax, Depreciaticn and Amaortisation! and adjusted EBITDA (EBITDA pius
nor-recurring iterts ‘neluding acquisition relared costs) are meaningfu! for investors because they provide an analysis

of operating results and profitability using the same measures used by management,

3. Staff numbers & costs including directors

Staff numpers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the Group {including directors) during the periad, anaiysed by category,

was as follows:

Number of Number of
employees empioyees
247 Aug 2020
to 31- Mar
2022 2021
Administration 98 78
QOperations 141 141
239 215
The aggregate payrol costs of thase persons were as follaws:
2022 2021
£'000 £'00C
Wages and salaries 12,901 527
Sociat security costs 1,546 381
Contrihutions e defined contribution pians 383 149
14,840 5,000

he Group operates a rumaer of defined contribution nension plans zur tas ne definred penefis olans «n place.

BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Staff numbers & costs including directors {continued}

Directors’ Short-term employee benefits

247 Aug
2020
to 31" Mar
2022 2021
£000 £'000
The directars’ aggregate Short-term emplayee benefits in respect of gualifying
ServICes was:
Shart-term empiloyee berefits receivabie 310 145
Post-employment pension and medical benefits 6 6
Short-term employee benefits of highest paid director:
Tatal Shart-term employee benefits 200 33
Post-employment pension and medical benefits 3 3

Directors recewved £2,642 defined contribution persion plan payments m the year {2021: £3,5991. The only xey
management personnel are the directors. Two of the directors whe served the company during the year are pard by the
ultimate controlling party, Levine Leichtman Capital Partners and two other directors ars paid for by a subsidiary,
BigHand UK Bidco Limited. The fellow companies have not rechargea any amount to tne company on the basis that the
amount attributabie to the company is negligible. The directors do not believe that it is practical to apportion the
remuneration for their qualifying services petween remuneration as directors of the Company and therr remuneration
as directors of the fellow subsidiary companies.

4. Finance Expense

24% Aug 2020
te 317 Mar
2022 2021
£000 £'000

Finance expense
Lease nterest 98 57
Bank inan interest 5,616 3,133
Preference Share interest 14,101 5,694
Revolving Credit Facility & Monitoring fees 323 385
Amortisation of debt issue cost 1,125 295
Unwind af discount on deferred remuneration {28) 287
Foreign exchange ioss 713 313

Total finance expense 21,948 3,864
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5. Taxation

24" Aug 2020

to 31" Mar
2022 2021
£000 £°060
Current Tax Expense
Current Pericd 37 73
Adjustment for Prior Years 365 137
Current Tax Expense 402 210G
Deferred Tax Expense
Origination & reversal of temporary differences 1,491 (635}
Adjustment for Prior Years {1,290)
Deferred Tax Expense 201 {635}
Total Tax Expense 603 {425)
247 Aug 2020
to 317 Mar
2022 2021
£'000 £7000
Factors affecting tax charge
Loss excluding taxation (23,342} (23,106)
Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2021: 19%; (4,435) {4.350)
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 7 28
Unused tax losses 989 281
Praferance share gividend non-deductible 2,679 1,082
Mon-deductible expenses 1,284 2.786
Tax {over) / under aravision i prior years (925) 137
Deductible temporary differences 1,912 {103}
Relief from JK Patert Box election {486) (238)
{FA axperditura treated as R&D (405)
Other (17} {8}
603 {425)

The main factor affecting future tax charges is the increase in the tax rate from 19% to 25%, the marn corporation tax
rate will be effective from 17 Apnit 2023, The deferraed tax assets and liabilities having been measurad at the rates at

which they are expected to reverse.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

6. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Fixtures and
improvement Fittings Equipment Total
E'00C £'000 £000 £000
Cost
Balance at 24 Aug 2020 - - - -
Acquired 13 October 2020 408 58 155 66l
Additions 24 - 99 123
Effect of movements In foreign exchange - [E] - {3}
Balance at 31 March 2021 432 55 254 781
Acquired or 31 jan 2022 - - 60 60
Additions 18 - 402 420
Disposals {98) (36} {158) {332)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - 2 g 19
Balance at 31 March 2022 352 21 566 939
Accumuiated depreciation and impairment
Bafance at 24 Aug 2020 - - - -
Depreciation charge for the period 53 14 112 179
Effect of movements in fareign exchange (2} (2) {6) (19)
Balance at 31 March 2021 51 12 106 165
Depreciation charge for the year 114 25 286 425
Disposals (98} {36) (196) {330
Effect of movements in forergn exchange - 2 3 10
Balance at 31 March 2022 687 3 204 274
Net book value
At 31 March 2021 381 43 188 612
At 31 March 2022 285 18 362 665
7. Leases
Amounts recogmised in the balance sheet
The balance sheet shows the following amounts reigting 1o leases:
Buiidings  Eguipment 2022 2021

£'000 £000

Right-of-use assets

Balance 35 at 1 Apri 1,520 27 1,547 -
Additions 39 - 39 1,806
Depreciation charge for the year (489 (3 {497} {235]
Disposals or adjustments 12 1 13 {24
Effect of movements in foreigr excharge 2 . 12

Balance as at 31 March 1,094 20 1,114 1,547
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

7. Leases {continued)

2022 2021
£'000 £000

Lease liabilities
Less than one year 487 478
Cne to five years 795 1,220
1,282 1,698

Amounts recogmised in the income statement

Ihe Group leases a number ot office buitding facilities. They are ciassified according to IFR516 leases. The income shows
the following amounts relating to ‘eases:

2022 2021
£'000 £000

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Buildings {489) {231}
Equipment (8) {4
{497) {235)
interest expense (included in finance costs) 98 {57}

The total cash outflow for ieases in the year was £314k (FY21 five-month period: £277k).

BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

8. Intangible Assets

Customer  Inteilectual

Goodwill  Brand Software  relationships Property Total
E'Q00  £7060 £'000 £'300 £000 £°000

Cost and valuation
2alance at 24 August 2020 - - - - - -
Acguired at 13 October 2020 88,965 1,992 341 77,688 3,450 178,436
Acguisition of subsidiary 656 - - - 337 893
Additions - - 1,978 492 - 2,470
Balance at 1 Aprii 2021 89,621 1,992 2,319 78,180 9,787 181,899
Acqguisition of subsidiary 82,709 335 - 32,232 4,478 119,754
Additions - - 5611 - - 5,611
Disposals or adjustments . {9374} {27 - {1,001)
EHact of movements in foreign exchange 1,212 3 17 275 (5} 1,502
Balance at 31 March 2022 173,542 2,230 6,973 110,660 14,260 307,765
Amortisation and impairment
Baiance at 24 August 2020 - - - - - -
Amartisation for the perod - 47 189 1,868 779 2,893
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - - - (2} - (2)
Balance at 1 April 2021 - a7 199 1,866 779 2,891
Amaortisation for the year - 105 2,289 4,202 1,773 8,429
Disposals or adjustments - - (974 - - (974)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - . - (1 1 {10)
Balance at 31 March 2022 - 152 1,514 6,117 2,553 10,336
Net book value
At 31 March 2021 289621 1,945 2,120 76,314 5,008 179,008
At 31 March 2022 173,542 2,178 5,459 104,543 11,707 297,429

intangibie assets camprise both 3ssets arising from costs incurrad to develop software and intangibles acguired through
business combinations. Intangibles assets are amortised over periods of 3 years for software, between 3 ang 6 years
for inteilectual progerty, between 10 and 20 years For customer relationships and between 10 and 20 years for Brand

intne period ended 31 March 2022, the Groun capitaiised any ‘'nternally generated software research and development
casts which have met the requirements of 14S 38 “Intangible Assets’, these amounts are included within the software
additiors.

BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

8. intangible Assets (continued)

Acquisition of Iridium Technology Holdings (LC

On 31 lanuary 2022, BigHand inc, a subsidiary in the Group acquired 100% of all classes of the 1ssued ordinary share
capital of Iridium Technology Holdings, LLC, a company incorparated and demiciled in the United States. The acguisition
is expected to enhance the Group's existing ousiness through the addition of talented and axperienced staff, the
opportunity to win and grow rew customers going forward and 2 compiimentary software sotutior which further
consolidates the Group's position In the NA fegal technology market.

The fair values of the assets and habtlities acauired are set out betow:
Fair values recogrised at acquisition

[£°000}
Assets
Fixed assets 60
Intangibles Assets™ 37,044
Trade and other receivabies 1,614
Cash 4,085
42,803
Liabilities
Trade and other payabies {31,568
Deferred tax™ (9,113;
i40.081)
Fair value of net assets acquired 2,122
Goodwill on acquisition 82,708
Settlement of existing debt 23,335
Total consideration 108,166

*intangible assets inciude intellectual Property ['IP'} identified on business combination amounting to £4,478k
amaortised over a period of 10 years. Customer relationships amounting to £32,231k amortised over a ser'od of 20 years
and Brand amounting to £336k and amortised over a period of 10 years. As a result of recognition of the :ntangibie
assets as part of the acguisition, a deferrea rax labifity arises of £9,113k

The post-acquisition trade of the indiun Group s now being conducted out of BigHand subsdiaries. The performance
of the iridium Group is not managed and reviewed separately and hence disclosure :n respect of revenue and orofit of
iridium Group since acgquisition is not included.

Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow prajection calculations

The recoverable amount of the group has beer determined based on a viaiue m use caiculation using casn flow
projectiors. Projected cash flows are calcwated witr reference to the graup’s business plan and subject to management
review. The business plan s prepared with detailed xnowledge of the current client base, the growth aspirations, and
the markets i which the group ogerates n. The year 1 casn flow projections are hased on detaled and anproved

firancial budgets and years 2 to 5 on an outiock preparad by management.




CocuSign Envelope ID: 85808124-806C-4D13-92FC-55BYDAD43F56
BigHand UK Topco Limited

B " ' I NI B0t 106G TOPsSidaie g IRgac Gi sHIments
I g a n A1 Adarcs 2032

Notes to the caonsolidated financial statements (continued)

8. intangihie Assets {rontinued)

The key assumptions used:

»  1CGU Is used as there s more than a significant interdependence between the cash inflows with all arcas of
the business being refiant or the London office to complete sale, provide service dehvery and provide
ongoing support to cusiomers

¢+ Growth rates of netween 5% to 24% mn years L 10 5 and then 5% after 5 years 10 perpetuity

»  Discountrare used of 11%

= EBITDA margins of between 36% to 39%

Discount rates used
Management estimates discount rates using post-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of meney. in assassing the discount rate, the following factors have neen considered:

»  Thelong-term UK treasury bonds

+  The cost of equity based on an adjusted Beta

+  The risk premium to reflect the .rcraased risk of investing in 2quities

Sensitivity analysis

The impairment raview done by managemeant is sensitive ta changing assumptions. The sensitivity which
management have performed is to ncrease WACC by 50 basis points {ta 12%), no growth in EBITDA, and a reduction
in cash flows by 5% in years 1 to 3. Even in this uniikely event no impairment wouid be recogrised.

9. Investments
Other than the Company’s irvestment in subsidiaries {disciosed i note 24} the Group has no investments.

10. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

31 March 2022 1 Aprl Recognised in Deferred taxes acauired n
2021 ncome business combinatiors 31 March 2022
E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Movement in the year

Tax value of losses carry-forwards 2061 2,504 - 4,565
CiR - unused interest capacity 235 1,419 - 1,654
Lease 28 13 - 42
Deferred tax asset 2,325 3,336 - 6,261

Movement in the year

Property, plant and equipment {415; (821 - (497}
Intangible assets 116.510) {4,122} 9,113 {29,745)
Deferred tax Habifity 16,925) {4,204, 19,13} (30.242)

BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

10. Deferred tax assets and liabilities {continued}

31 March 2021 24
August Racogrised in Deferred taxes
2020 income acguired in business 31 March 2021
£'000 £'000 combinations £'000 £'000
Maovement in the period
Tax value of losses carry-forwards utliised - 318 1,742 2061
CIR - unused intarast capacity 235 235
Lease 7 2 29
Deferred tax aszot - 561 1,754 2,325
Movemaent in the period
Praperty, plant and equipment - (415) {415)
Intangible assets - 489 {16,999} {16,510)
Deferred tax liability - 74 {16,999} {16,925)
11. Inventories
2022 2021
£°000 £°000
Raw materials and consumables 59 134
12. Trade and other receivables
2022 2021
£'000 £000
Trade and other receivahies 10,351 7,634
Contract asset™ 1,309 532
Prepayments 1,676 1,502
13,336 9,558
*Cantract asset “epresents accrued income
13. Cash and cash equivalents
2022 2021
£'000 £'0C0
Cast and cash equivalents 13,346 17,727

Cash and cash aguivalents comprise cash at oank anly

BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

14. Trade and other nayabtles

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Current
Trade and octner pavables 2,003 702
Other taxation and social security 300 3.004
Contract hahility 27,896 20,834
Accryals 2,470 2,383
Deferred remunerat.on 338 1,323
Contingent liakdity 27 157
33,734 28.523

“Contract liability -epresents deferred income

Deferred remuneration comprises remuneration arising from the acguisition of Mason & Cook Ltd of £2 24k and bonus’
of £114k arising from the acguisition of Iridium Technology Holdings (which were paid following the year end 1o eligible
staff in June 2022, The contingent liability comprises consideration arising from acquisition Mason & Cook Ltd
acauisition of £27k.

F¥21 comarised contingent remuneratior arising from acguisition of Iphelion Ltd (a company previously acquired oy
BigHand Lid} of £1,034k and contingent remuneration arising from Mason & Cook Ltd acguisition of £28%9k. The
contingent remuneration from the acquisition of Iphelion Ltd was paid in January 2022

15. Interest bearing foans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which
area measured at amortised cost. For more informaticn about the Group’s expeosure to nterest rate and foraign currency
risk, see note 17.

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Non-current liabilities
Secured bankicans 98,616 60,000
10% Suborcinated foar notes 19,993 20,000
12% Preferepce shares classified as debt 173,710 101,887
Praference dividend 19,796 5,654
Bank facility fee {835) {2,610}
311,230 185,571

Current iabilities

Interest on secured bank loans 431 8%
431 89

Bank loans and Preference Shares

Existing nank ioans ir BigHand JK Bidco wia of £37.5m are comprised of a £50m term [oan witn 3arirgs which has a
maturity date of 13 January 2028, a fixed interest charge of 3 3% and a floating charge tinked to SONIA, £2.5m of this
febt was regaid in the year itinciudes 3 financial covenant consisting of a ieverage ratio ‘imit of ©.92 for the period. it
Jiso has credit faclity of £5m with NatWest available until 13 july 2027,

Post palance sneet date, on 26th May 2022 and 217 June 2022 respectvely: 431,930 and 29,437 araeference shares {21

pary were issued.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

15. Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

On 31 lanuary 2022 the Group borrowed an incremental £40m in USD {$53.9m} from Barings which has the same
maturity date and interest charges as above. In accordance with the agreement on the existing bank foans, a
covenant resef letter was issued and signed and the covenant ratios revised,

On the same date, the Group giso issued areference shares of £71.8m. Both trarsact.ons were to fund the acquisition
of Inidhum Tachnoiogies.

The existing subordinatad loan notes in BigHand UK Holdco Ltd comprises of £19.2m of loan note A and £0.8m of loan
note 8. During the year, there has been partial delisting of the loan note B of £0.01m.

3oth of the ioan notes are subjectad to 10% fixed rate interest, and the interest is pard on monthly hasis. The ipan
notes mature on 13 April 2028 and are dsted on The International Stock Exchange (“TISE”).

The revoiving credit facility {'/RCF'} of £3m {2021 £5m) remained in piace in 2022 The Group maintained a positive
cash position throughoeut the year and did rot draw on the RCF.

16. Share Capital

12% cumulative redeemable Ordinary shares
preference shares
In thousands of shares 2022 2021 2022 2021
Onissue at 13 October 101,887 101,387 10 10
Issued for cash 71,823 - 3 -
Onissue at 31 March - fuliy paid 173,710 101,887 13 10
2022 2021
£'000 £000
Ailotted, called up and fully paid
1,088,110 A ordinary shares of £0.01 each {FY21: 767,448} 11 g
48,210 B ordinary shares of £0.07 each (FY21: 32,552] - -
50.000 C1 ordinary shares of £0.01 each {FY21: 50,000) 1 1
113,500 C2 ordinary shares of £3.01 each (FY21- 110,000; 1 1
12% cumulative ~edeemable Preference Shares issued at £0.01 gach 173,710 101,887
173,723 101,887
Shares ciassified in sharehoiders’ funds as eguities 13 10
Shares classified as habilities 173,710 141,887
173,723 101,887

Post balance sheet date, on 137 May 2022 7,000 C2 shares of £0.01 each were issued {at £1,50 per sharg)

Ordinary shares
The mair rghts attaching to the ordinary sharos are as follows:

Voling rights.

Or a3 show of rands ang or poll, each holder of ciass A, class B, class C1l ordinary shares who s present shail nave ore
vote. Tae holders of C2 ordinary shares are not erbitied to sote, receive notice nor attend or speak at any general
meestings.

BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

16. Share Capital {continued}
Distributions {including dividends) and return of capitai:
On ail distributions |including a returr of capital on a liquidation, but excluding a redemption of or purchase by the

company of its own shares) (the “Ordinary Distributions”), the assets of the company remaining after the payment of
its liailities shall be distributed among the helders of class A, class B, class C1 and class C2 ordinary shares {the
‘Ordinary Shares"! pro rata based on the number of Ordinary Shares held by eacn such holder. provided that such
Ordinary Distributions shali, in respect of any class B ardinary shares held by any Bad Leaver or Very Bad Leaver [as
defined in the articles), be capped at a3 maximum vaiue {with any greater amount that would otherwise nave seen
ailocated to such Bad Leaver or Very Bad Leaver in respect of such class B ardinary sharas being allocated amongst the
remaimng holders of the Ordirary Shares pari passu as if the same constituted one class of share).

Preference shares

The preference shares are redeemabile and have a par vatue of £0 01 and are allotted for £0.01 per share. The
preference shares carry an entitlement to preference dividend at the rata of 12% per share per annum, compounded
arnually an 13 Qctober each year. The company may, at any time, redeem all or some of the Preference Shares then
inissue, The preference shares and the preference share dividends would be redeemale upon the sale of BigHand
<K Topeo Limited {the ultimate holding company af the Group) or by the shareholder ard third party financers

agreement

Reserves
Nature and purpose of reserves:
*  Retained Earnings - comprises the accumulated retained profits from current and prior periods.
e  Share Premium Reserve - comprises historical premiums paid above the nominai vaiue of equity shares
issued.
e Foraign Exchange Reserve —comprises net axcharge differances recognised ir other comprehensive income
and accumulated over current and priar perrods.
. Capital Redemption Reserve —is a nan-distributable raserve into which amounts are trarsferred following the
raedemption ar purchase of The Company's shares,
»  Employee Benefit Trust - The Company sponsors an Employee Berefit Trust in which it holds the snares. At
the balance sheet date 2,812 ordinary 8 shares and 25,000 ordinary C2 shares were held by the Trust.

17. Financial instruments

The Group’s financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, recevables. borrowings and payables. These all
arise directly from the Group's operations. As disciosed below, the Group nas in place foreign exchange contracts to
help manage its irterast rate and foreign exchange risk.

Fair values
The table below analyses financial instruments, into a fair value hierarchy gased on the valuation technigue used to
determina fair vaiue,
+  Level 1. guoted {unadjusted prices in active markets for "dentical assets or iiabilities).
o evel 20 orher techaigues for which all irputs thar have a sigmficant affect on rthe recorded fair value are
abservable, either directhy or indirecthy.
2 Level 3:technigues that use ‘nputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value, which are not

nased upon observable market data,

i BigHand
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

17. Financial instruments {continued)
Tacre nave been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the pericd.

The fair values of all financial assets and financial Hahitities by class together with their carrying amounts shown in the
batance sheet are as follows.

Carrying Carrying
amount amount
2022 2021
£'000 £000
Loans and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents {note 13} 13.346 17,727
Other foans and receivables {note 12} 13,336 7,634
Total financial assets 26,682 25,361
Financtal liabilities measured at amortised cost
interest-bearing loans and borrawings {note 15) 311,230 185,660
Trade and other payabies (note 14} 5,738 7,629
Total financial hiabilities 316,968 183,289

There 5 no matertal difference between the book value and the fair vatue of tnese financial assets
and habilitles.

Credit risk

Financial risk management
Cradit risk is the risk of finrarcial loss to the Group f a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations ang arises prinaipally from the Group's receivables from customers and investment securit:es.

In order 1o mipimise this risk, the Group endeavaurs anly te deal with companies and public sector bodies which are
demonstrably creditworthy and this, togethear with the aggregate exposure, 1S continuously monitored. The group had
ne customers who represented more than 10% of the trade receivables baiance as at 31 Marcn 2022,

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets reprasents the maximum credit exposure, therefore, the maximum exposure
to credit nisk ar the balance sheet date was £13,336,000 (FY21 £7,634.000; peing the total of the gross carrying

amount of financial assets, excluding eguity mvestments and cash and cash equivalents, shown o the rabie below.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

17. Financial instruments (continued)
Credit quality of financial assets and expected credit losses

The aging of trade receivables at the balance sheet date was:

Expected

Expected Credit

Gross Credit Loss Gross Loss

2022 2022 2021 2021

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Mot past duc 5,195 - 1,797 -

Past due 0-30 days 1,620 - 1,488 -
Past due 31-30 days 839 - 825

More than 90 days 1,259 {537} 698 {440)

10,333 {537} 7.818 {440)

The movement in the allowance for expecred credit 'osses .n respect of trade receivables during the pertod was as

fotlows:
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Baiance at 1 April 2021 440 -
Acguired inthe year 149
Agditions ir the yaar 133 544
Utilised in the year {185) (104}
Balance at 31 March 2022 537 440

The allowance account for trade recervables is used 10 record expected credit iosses unless the Group s satisfied that
no recovery of the amount owing is possible: ar that poirt the amounts considered irrecoverable are written off against

the trade receivables directly.

Market risk
Financiaf risk management

Market risk is the risk that changes 'n market prices, such as foreign exchange rates. interest rates and equity prices will

affect the Group's income or the vaiue of its holdings of financial instruments.

The Group manage the =xposurs of market risk by putting in gizce forward contracts for forgign currency (entered into

and closed within the year! at ore-determined ratas at the astimated amourt of funds to be repatrated from the
averseas subsidiaries {USA, Canada, Austraila and Europel. A £238k less (FY21 £240k gain) arose from these contracts
and is recorded within the foreigr exchange 1osses classification in the P&L
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

17. Financial instruments (continued)
Fareign currency risk

The Group's exposure to fareign currency risic s as foflows. This is based on the carrying amount for monetary financial
instruments except derivatives.

31 March 2022

Austratian New Zealand

Canadian Euro Us Bollar Dollar Doflar Tota!

Doilar £ 000 £'000 £000 £7000 £'000 £00C

Casn and cash equivalents 371 1,088 3,632 1,307 75 5,973
Trade receivables 413 142 4,645 743 32 5,973
Trade payables 4 {341} {150) 34} - {(5326]
interest-bearing loans - - {41,116) - - {41,116}
1,233 389 {32,983} 2,016 167 {28,694

Net exgosure

31 March 2021

Austraiian  New Zealand

Canadian Eurg US Daollar Dollar Dolfar Total

Doliar £'000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000

Cash and cash eguivaients 340 2,157 2,461 1,711 - 7,269
Trade receivables 72 302 2,419 437 - 3.230
Trade payabies {1} 5} (82} 110) - (93}
1,011 2,454 4,798 2,138 - 10,481

Net exposure

Sensitivity analvsis
The figures above are based on the following closing exchange rates:

Closing exchange rates 2022 2021
Eura 1.17 1.17
USs Dollar 1.31 1.37
Canadiar Coilar 1.64 1.73
Australian Dollar 1.75 1.81
New Zealand Dollar 1.89 1.89

For a movement of plus or minus 5% in the above axchanges rates, the carrying values would be changed as set out

below:
Resulting change 2022 2021
Eura 44 123
JS Dollar (1,649) 240
Canadian Dollar 64 51
Austratian Jollar 101 157

New Zealana Dollar S
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

17. Financial instruments [continued)

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk ;s the risk that the Group will nct be able to meet its firancial obligations as they fall due. The provision
of cash for the repayment of day-to-day business commitmaents is carefully monitored and forecasts are made of
future cash requirements.

The followmg are the cortractual matunties of financial habilities:

2022 Carrying Effective Repayment 1-2 2 Svyears  >5years
amount nterest rate < lyear  years
E£'000 % £000  £'000 £000 £'000
Secured bank foan - Senior debt B 98,616 SONIA + - - - 38,616
5.5%
Secured bank lean — Accrued interest 431 n/a 5,526 6,095 18,285 4,571
subordinated Loar notes 19,993 10% - - - 19,983
Subordinated Loan notes interest - n/a 1,999 1,999 5,998 1,999
Preference shares classified as debt* 173,710 12% - - - 173,710
Trade and other pavabies 5,738 n/a 5,738
Lease Habiiities 1,282 n/a 487 387 409 -
299,770 14,750 8,481 24,5692 298,889

TAgdibiony nterest will oo gavation additior L ome amowents arasentad as Prafereace Shares anove after 3 yoars

2021 Carrying Effective Repayment 1-2  2-5years >5 years
amount  interast rate < 1year  years
£°000 %% £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Secured hark ‘can - Seniar debt B 50,200 LIBOR + - - - 60,000
5.5%
Secured bark loan —~ Accrued interast 39 nJa 3,442 3.353 10.058 5,857
Subordinated Loan notes 20.00C 10% - - - 20.000
Subordinated Loan notes interest - n/a 2,000 2.e00 £5.000 4,000
Prefarcnce shares classified as debt 101,887 12% - - - 101,887
Trade and other payabies 7,629 n/a 7,829 -
Lease liabilities 1,698 n/a 568 919 28
191,303 13,639 5,272 16,486 191,754

Further details on the interest-bearing loans and borrowings are included in note 15
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

interest rate risk
The Group financas itself through a combination of equity and debt. The Group's borrowings are a mixture of fixad
rate instruments {loan notas} and floating rate borrowings fram NatWest and Barings.

2022 2021

£'000 E'000

Fixed rate instruments 19,993 20,000
Floating rate Instruments 98,616 60,000
118,609 80,000

A change of 100 basis points i interest rates at the balance sheet date wouid have increased interest expense by
£986,160 (2021: £600,000).

Capital risk management

The Group’s capital comprises ordinary share capital, preference share capital, share premium, retained earnings,
foreign exchange reserves and employee berefit trust. The Group has a financial paiicy to maintain a net leverage ratio
(net debt tc adjusted £BITDA) not exceeding 7.42:1. The ieverage ratio was £.96:1 as at 31 March 2022 {2021: 4.46:1}

18. Capital commitments
At the year-end 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any capital commitments 1o purchase grogerty or plant and
sguipmeant,

19. Related parties

During the year the directors and key management personnei “eceived preference shares and loan noteas (see note 15}
with an aggregate value of £2,591,374 (FY21: £4,440,854, The accrued interest on the preference snares and loan notes
in the period include £382,983 (F¥21 £236,502) n respect of the directors and key manragement persornel. The
preference shares and loan notes balance relating to directors and xey management, inciuding accrued intarest was
£8,492,847 (FY21: £4,677.356)

20. Ultimate controlling parties

The immediate parent company of BigHand UK Topco Limited is 8igHand US Equity Hoidao, LLE which 1s incorporated
in the Cayman istands. The ultimate controlling party 's LLCP GP Hotdings, LLC which s 'ncorperated in the United States.
The smailest group inte which the financal statements are consolidated s BigHand UK Topeo Limited. The largest group
inte which the financral statements of the company are consolidated 1s Levine Leichtman Capital Partners | A1y, LP
which has 3 registerad office C/o Manples Corporate Services Limited PO Box 309, Ugiand House, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands K¥1-1104.

' BigHand
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21. Subsidiary audit exemptions
Thne following subsidiaries are exempt from the cequirement of an audit of thelr individuat accounts in compliance with
s479A-C of the Companies Act 2006. Parental Guarantee nas seen given by BigHand UK Taopco Limsted to each of the
subsidiares listed beiow.

Prncipal place of Registered number
business/ Couptry

of incorporation

BigHand UK Holdco Limited England & Wales 12833635
BigHand UK Midco Limited England & Wales 12833971
BigHand UK Bidco i imired England 8 Waies 12834023
BH Group Topco Limited England & Wales 11267353
BH Group Midco Limited England & wWales 11267753
BH Group Bidco Limited England & Waies 11267908
BH Topco umited England & Wales 7981569
BH Midco Lmited England & Waies 7991572
BH Bidco timited Fngland & Wales 7915020
BigHand Holdings Urmited England & Wales 3819091
BigHand Limited England & Wales 3128724
nFlow Software Limited Englang & Wales 3916189
DW Reporting Limited England & Wales 3348786
Iphelion Limited England & Wales (05743298
Mason & Cook Limited England & Wales 08622091

] BigHand
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Company Balance Sheet

at 31 March 2022

Big Hand ) N '\/?G;;h 2022

Note 2022 2021
£°000 £'000
Fixed assets
investments in subsidiaries 24 175.211 102,042
Intercompany Loan - 217
Current assets
Debiors 25 3
Prapayments 25 g3
96 -
Creditors: amounts falling due withur ane year 26 {478} 21
Net current liabilities {382) {21}
Total assets less current liabilities 174,829 102,838
Creditors: amounts falling due after mora than ore year 26 193,506 107,581
Capital and reserves
Called up share capial 27 13 1
Share premium account 1,462 951
Employee Benetit Trust {28} (9;
Prafit and loss account {20,124} (5,699)
Total equity (18,677) (4,743}
174,829 102,838

The 'oss for the year was £14.425,000 /FY21 period. loss of £5,599,000).

These financial statemrents were approved oy ‘he Board of directors on 10th August 2022 and were signed on its

hehalt oy:

DocuSigned by

James Dais
ADO535B500ED4F 4
james Davis

CFO

10% August 2022

Compary registared ~umper. 12832924
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year 31 March 2022

Share Empioyee
Share Premium Retained Benefit Trust Total Egquity
Capital Account Earnings £'000 £000
£'000 £000 £000
At incorporation (24 Aug 2020) - - - - -
Lass for the period - - (5,699} - 15,699}
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Total Comprehensive loss for the period - - (5,699) - (5,699}
Issue of shares 10 951 - - 961
EBT movement - - - {5) {5)
31 March 2021 10 951 (5,699) {5) {4,743)
Loss for the year 2022 - - 114,423; - {14,425
Qther comprenensive .ncome
Total Comprehensive foss for the year - - {14,425) - {14,425}
Issue of shares 3 51l - - 514
EBT movement - - - {23) 123)

31 March 2022 13 1,462 (20,124} (28} (18,677)
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

(formung part of the financial statements)

22. Accounting policies

The following accounting palicies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in
relfation to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The parent company financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Recuced
Disclosure Framewaork {FRS 101} and in accordance with apphcable accounting standards.

The accounting polictes which fotlow set cut those polictes which apply i preparing the financial statements for the
yvear endad 31 March 2022, The Company has taken advanlage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101

v the reguirements of paragraphs 45{b} and 46-52 of {FRS 2 Share-based Payment;

*  thereguirements of paragraphs 62, 864{d), Bo4can, B64(g), 864{h}, BBA(;) to Bod{m), 864{ni{ii), Bo4 [o)(i),
B64(pl. BEA{g){ii}, B66 and B670T IFRS 3 Business Combinatians;

+ the requirements of 'FRS 7 Financial instruments; Disciosuras,

+ the reguirements of paragraphs 91-99 of 1FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;

+ the requirements of paragraphs 10(d}, 10(f), 39¢can and 134-136 of 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements;

»  the requirements of I1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

+  the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Srrors;

+  the reguirements of paragraph L7 of tAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;

= the reguirements in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into
etween two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which s a party te the transaction s
wholly owned by such a member; and

v the reguirements of paragraphs 134{d}-134{f) and 133car-135can of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

The company has taken advantage of exemption availabie under Sectiorn 408 of Camoparies Act 2006 not to present its
own profit and loss account. The company’s 'oss for the year was £14 425,000,

Going Concern
As the head of the BigHand Group, the Company’ going concern statusis inherently linked to tne Going Concern position
of the Group, please Refer 1o Note | of the Cansolidated financial stataments

Investments
Investments in subsidiary undertakings, associates ana joint ventures are stated at cost iess any provision for
tmpairment. The carrying value of investments s reviewed for impatrment when avents or changes in circumstances

indicata the carrying value may not Se recoverabie.

BigHand
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22. Accounting policies {continued}
Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax and is recognised in the income statement.

Current tax is the expected tax payahie or recaivable on the taxabie income or loss for the year, using tax rates cnacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary gifferences between the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities for financiai
reporting purposes ard the amounts used for taxation purposes, The following temporary differences are not provided
for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liahilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating Lo investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that can be controlied and that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amgount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Adeferred tax asset 1s recognised only 1o the extent that it is probahbie that futurc taxabie profits will be avalable against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Finance costs and borrowings

Interest-hearing loans are recorded at the proceeds recewed, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges. including
premiums nayabie on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted far on an amortised cost basis n
the profit or loss account using the effactive Interest method and are added o the carryimg amount of the instrument
to the extent that they are not settlec in the period in which they arise.

Classificatior of financial instruments issued by the Company

Financial imstruments issued by the Company are treated as equity enly to the extent that they meet the foliowing two
conditions:

al  they include no contractual obligations upon the Company o detiver cash or other financiai assets or to exchange
Fnancial assets or financial labilittes with another party under conditions that are potentiaily unfavourable to the
Company; and

b} where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments, itis either a non-derivative
that includes no oligation to deliver a variable number of the Company’s own eguity instruments or 1s a derivative
that will be settled hy the Company's exchanging 3 fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number
of its ownr eguity instruments.

To the extent that this definitiorn is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a finarcial lighility. Where the
mstrument so classified takes the legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts gresented in these financiai
statements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares.
Finance payments associated with financial iiabilities are dealt with as part of interest pavable and similar charges.
Finance payments associated with finanaial instruments that are ciassified as part of equity (see dividends policy), are
dealt with as appropriations in the recenciliation of movements in equity

Dividends on shares presented within equity

Dividend income is recognised when the company’s right to receive payment i estabiished.
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Notes to the parent company financial statements (continued)

22 Accounting policies {continued)

Employee benefit trust (‘EBT)

The Company operates an EBT over which it has de facto contrel aof the shares hetd by the trust and bears the henefits
and risk. It therafore records the assets and liabilities and the results and cash flow of the trust as its own,

23 Remuneration of Directors

Nane of the directors recewved any remuneration for their qualifying services to the Company in the period.

Two of the directors wha servad the company during the year are paid by the ultimate controtling party. Levine
Leichtman Capital Partners. There has been no recharge to the company on the basis that the amaount attributable to
the compary is negligible. Two other directors are paid for by a subsidiary, BigHand UK Bidco Limited The diractors do
rot believe that it is practical to apportion the remuneration for their gualifying services between remuneration as
directors of the Company and therr remuneration as directors of the fellow subsidiary companies.

24, investments in subsidiaries
Shares in Group undertaking
companies
BigHand UK Topco

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Cost and net bock value!
investments in subsidiaries 175,211 102,042
175,211 102,642

The investment relates to BigHand UK Holdeo Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary regiszered in England and Wales.
digHand UK Holdco Limited owns the antire 1ssued share capital of the following companies either directly or indirectly:
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24, Investments in subsidiaries {continued)

Appuai oo

BigHand UK Tapco Limited

THG CINSTATED eaachT! ST TRITe s

31 Warom 2022

Principal place of Registerad number fiass of Praportion of

business/ Country shares voting rghts

of yncorporation held  and shares held

2022

BigHand UK Holdco Limited England & Waies 12833635 Ordinary 100%
BigHand UK Midce Limited Engiand & Waies 12833871 Ordirary 100%
BigHand UK Bidco Limited England & Wales 12834023  Ordinary 100%
BA Grouo Topeo Limited England & Wales 11267353 Ordirary 10C%
BH Group Midco Limited England & Waies 11267753  Ordinary 100%
BH Group Bidco Limited England & Wales 11267508 Qrdirary 100%
BH Topco Limited England & Wales 7981569  Ordinary 100%
BH Midco Limited England & Wales 7991572  Crdinary 100%
BH Bidco Limited England & Wales 7915020 Ordinary 100%
BigHand Holdings Limited England & Wales 5819081  Ordinary 100%
BigHand Limited England & Wales 3128724 Ordinary LOG%
“Fow Software Limited England & Wales 3915188 Ordinary 100%
DW Reporting Limiteq gngland & Wales 8343786  Ordinary 100%
iphelion Limited Englard & Wales 05743298  Qrdinary 100%
Mason & Cook Limited England & Wales 08622091  Ordinary 100%
DW Reporting Canada Limited Canada BC1070430  Qrdinary 100%
Bighand inc, USA 4175245 Common 100%
Payne Grouo Inc. LSA 502624  Common 100%
BigHand Software Inc, Canada 82112-1811-RC0OCC1  Common 100%
BigHand Seftware Pty Limited Austrahia CAN 131578544  Ordinary 100%
Bighand B.V. (formerly dFlow 8.V ) Netherlands KwK 17209395  Ordinary 100%
iridium Holdings LLC LSA 83-1575916  Ordinary 100%
indium Technclogy Opco, LLC USA 82-3557898  Ordinary 100%
irngium Technoiocgy New Zealand Ltd New Zeatand 8429047025110  Ordinary 100%
indium Technology Canada Ltd Canada 73009 4737  Ordinary 100%
indium Technoiogy Canada Inc. [US) USA 83-1393535 Ordinary 100%

The principal activity of all of the comparmies 's the provisior of productivity and profitability solutions to the fegal,
professional services and neaithcare markets, except for Bighand UK Holdco dimited, BigHand UK Midce timited,

BigHand LK Bidco Limited, 8H Group Topco Limited,

8+ Group Midco Limited, BH Group Bidco Limited, BH Topco

Lirmited, BH Midco Limited, BH Bidco Limited and BigHand Holdings Limuted which are investment heolding companies
providing managemaent services to thelr subsidiaries.

The registered office far BigHand UK Hoidece Limited, BigHand UK Midco Limited, BigHand UK Bidco Limited, BH Group
Topco Limited. BH Group Midco Umited, BH Group Bidco Limited, 8H Topce Limited, BH Mideo Lirmited, BH Bidco
Limited, BigHand Holdings Limited, BigHand Limited, DW Reporting Limited, Iphelion Limited, Masen & Cook Limited
and nFlow Sottware Limited are all at 27 Union Street, Lordon, SE1 15D
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24, Investments in subsidiaries (continued}

The registered offices of the overseas subsidiary companies are as foliows;
. Bighand irc. - 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmmgton, Newcast'e, Delaware 19808, USA / 1255
. Payne Group inc. - 1218 37 Avenue, Surte 1900, Seatlie, WA 98101-3051
. BigHand Software Irc. - 199 Bay 5t. Commerce Court West, Suite 4000, Toronto SN M5L LA9
. SigHand Software Pty Ltd - Suite 2 cevel 11 52 Pitt Street, Syaney, NSW 2000, Australia
e Bigrtand 3 V. - Fiight Forum 40 Ground floor 3637 DB Einchover Netnerands (Virtual Office Space
. DW Reporting Canada Limited - ¢/o McCarthy Terrault LLP, Swite 2400, 743 Thur'ow Street, Vancouver BC VBE 003
s lroium doldings LLC - 2470 Keetzke cane, Suite 3000 Reno, Ny 39511
. Irgium Technology Opco, LLC - 5470 Kietzke Lane, Suite 300. Reng, NV 39511
. iridium Technology New Zealang Ltd - 28C Greerhithe Road, Graerhithe, Auckland, N7
* indium Technoiogy Canada 70D - 220-7565 L32nd St, Sur-ey, BC, Canada
+  Indium Technology Canada inc. {US) - 3470 Kietzke Lane, Suite 300. Reno, NV 89511

25. Debtors
2022 2021
£'000 £°00C
Amounts receivabie within one year
Amounts owed fram Group undertakings™® 3
Prepayments 93 -
96 -

"The amount owed to Group unaertakings s unsecurec and repdyabls on demand The group ntas an anrua % interest charge or
the ntercampany balances as at vear end,

26. Creditors

2022 2021
£°000 £7000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed 1o Group undertakings® (478} 15
Accruals - 6
{478) 21
Ameounts falling due after more than one vear
10% preference shares classified as liagbidities 173,710 101,887
Preference dividend 19,796 5,694
153,506 107,581

*The amount pavabie to Group undertakings :$ unsecured and repayable on demanc The group has ananrual 5% ntarest charge on
the ntercompany balances as at year end,

The preferance sharas have a oar value of £0.01 and are ailotted for £0.01 per share, The araferance shares carry an
entitiement 1o greferance dividend at the rate of 12% per share per arnum, compounded annually on 13 Octcher sach

year

Post balance sheet date, on 26tn May 2022 and 217 lure 2022 respectively; 431,930 and 25,437 preference shares 1£1
par! were issued.

BigHand
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27. Called up share capital

2022 2021
£'000 £°006G

Alfotted, called up and fully paid:
1,089,110 A ordinary sharas of £0.01 each {F¥21: 767,448} 11 3
48,210 B ordinary shares of £0.01 sach {FY21: 32,552} - -
50,000 C1 ordinary sharas of £0.01 each (FY21 50,000) 1 I
112,500 C2 ordinary shares of £0.01 each {F¥21. 111,000} 1 1
13 10

Post balance sheet date, on 137 May 2022 7,000 C2 shares of £0.01 each were issued {at £1,50 par share)

Voung rights:
On a show of hands and on pell. each holder of class A, class 8, class C1 ordinary shares who 's present shail have one

vote. The holders of C2 ordinary snares are not ertitied to vote, recewve notice nor attend or speak at any generat

meetings.

Distobutions {including dividends) and return of capital:
Cn ail distributians {including a return of capitai on a liguidation, but excluding a redemption of or purchase oy the

company of its own shares) (the “Ordinary Distrbutions”}, the assets of the company remairing after the payment of
its liabilities shall be distributed among the hoiders of class A, class B, ciass C1 and class C2 ordinary shares (the
"Ordinary Shares") pro rata based on the number of Ordinary Shares held by each such holder, provided tnat sucn
Ordinary Distributions shail, in respect of any class 8 ordinary shares held by any Bad Leaver or Very Bad Leaver {as
defined in the articles), be canped at a maximum value {with any greater amount that would otherwise have deen
ailocated to such Bad Leaver or Veary Bad Leaver in respect of such class B ordinary shares being ailocated amongst the

remaining hoiders of the Ordinary Shares oari passu as 'f the same constituted one class of sharel.

28. Reserves

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Ratained Earnings —camprises the accumulated ratained grofits from current and prior perods.

Share Premium Reserve - camprisas historical premiums paid above the nominal value of equity shares issued.

Capital Redempt.on Reserye - Capital Redemption Reserye — 15 a non-distributable reserve into which amounts are
transferred following the redemption or purchase of The Company's shares.

Employee Benefit T-ust - The Campany spansors an Employee Benefit Trust in which it haolds the shares.

At the balance sheet date 2,812 grdinary B shares and 25,000 ordinary C2 shares were held by the Trust.

29. Related party disclosures

The Company is controtled py Levine taichtman Capital Partners. The Company has taken advantage of “he exemption

in FRS 1G1 “Related party disclasure” (paragraph 17 and 18A) not to disclose trapsactions with wholly ownad
subsigiaries. Details of arsactions with other related parties are set out :n note 19,

BigHand




